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Strongly opposed to the formation of a ohurch, he did no more than gather
congregations, and was compelled to flee from one place to another to escape
persecution, until he died in Ulm in 1561. After his death, under the conditions
of the times, any ecclesiastical organization of his followers was impracticable,
although meetings, and occasional conferences, were held in Silesia, Switzerland,
and Italy.

Early in the eighteenth century the question arose of emigration to America,
and in September, 1734, about 200 persons landed at Philadelphia. Allegiance
to the civil authorities having been pledged on September 23, they devoted the
next day to thanksgiving for their deliverance from oppression, and they have
continued to celebrate it as a memorial day ever since. Unable to secure land,
as they desired, for a distinct community, they obtained homes in Montgomery,
Bucks, Berks, and Lehigh Counties, Pa., where the greater number of their
descendants are now to befound. The character of their early life in this country
is indicated by their literary and doctrinal activities, the adoption of a school
system in 1764, and the establishment of a charity fund in 1774, through which
they have since cared for the unfortunate members of the community.

Toward the close of the Revolutionary War it became evident that a closer
church organization was necessary, and one was formed and a constitution
adopted in 1782. In common with the Quakers, Mennonites, and other kindred
bodies, they gave their testimony against war, secret societies, and the taking of
oaths. More recently a responsiveness to modern influences has changed their
former attitude on these matters; all rules and regulations against secret societies
have been dropped; the participation in war has been left to the individual
oonscience; and, in the war with Germany, not only was no exemption asked on
the ground of religious belief, but a considerable number of the young men
entered the national service.

The establishment of the Perkiomen 8chool has had a mrked effect in increasing
the number of college graduates in the churches and the general interest in higher
education. As a result, they have gained in strength and in numbers.

DOCTRINE

The church holds that theology should be constructed from the Bible alone,
but affirms that the Scriptures are dead without the indwelling Word. Christ’s
divinity, it is held, was progressive, His human nature partaking more and more
of the divine nature without losing its identity. They believe that an absolute
change through faith and regeneration, and subsequent spiritual growth, are
primary essentials to salvation, but that justification by faith should not obscure
the positive righteousness imparted by Christ, imitation of whom is the funda-
mental feature of the Christian life. The Lord’s Supper, symbolic of both Hia
humanity and His divinity, is regarded as a means of spiritual nourishment
without any change in the elements, such as is implied in consubstantiation or
transubstantiation. They look upon infant baptism as not apostolic and the
mode of baptism as of no consequence.

The Christian Church is held to be a unity, whose discipline should be rigor-
ous, and whose members should be those who give experimental evidence of
regeneration, and who pass a satisfactory examination in the doctrines and cus-
toms of the church. The activity of the laity is considered to fulfill the doctrine
of the Christian priesthood. The right of the State to force the conscience of
the citizen is denied.
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ORGANIZATION

The only officers are ministers, deacons, and trustees, who are elected and
ordained by the local churches, the ministers for an unlimited period, the deacons
for a term of three years, or until their successors are chosen, and the trustees
annually. The public worship is simple and flexible as to time and manner.

Until the close of the nineteenth century ministers served without compensa~
tion, but since then most of them have received financial support, and at present
the younger clergy are all college-bred men, graduates of the best institutions
in the country. There has been, also, a notable change in the type of church
edifice, the plain, small buildings in use in earlier days having been replaced
frequently by large and well-equipped churches, with Sunday school rooms and
rooms for social purposes. , ,

- The members of the local churches meet in a district conference at least once
a year. The district conferences are members of the General Conference, in
which all church members have equal rights and privileges without distinction
of sex. The General Conference has original and appellate jurisdiction in all
matters relating to the Schwenkfelder Church. It elects the members of the
mission board, the trustees of Perkiomen School, and the members of the board
of publication.
: WORK

- During the year 1926 about $4,000 was contributed toward the support of
mission work, carried on through the boards of other churches, in China, India,
and the Philippines. The' church contributes largely to the support of two
of its own members who labor in China under the jurisdiction of the American
Board of Foreign Missions. Bpecial emphasis is placed upon Sunday schools,
which have been maintained since the migration in 1734, and upon catechetical
ipstruction of the young in the doctrines of the church. It maintains a fund to
help the poor and suffering and has a board of publications and a board of mis-
sions. The Perkiomen School for Boys, at Pennsburg, Pa., has 200 students,
property valued at more than $200,000, and an endowment of approximately
$100,000. The amount contributed toward the support of educational work in
1926 was approximately $25,000. There are 11 Christian Endeavor societies,
with 400 members. ‘

Since 1907 the Schwenkfelder Church, in conjunction with Hartford Theo-
logical Seminary, has published 9 volumes of the Corpus Schwenkfeldianorum, a
critical edition of the works of . Kaspar von Schwenkfeld, which is to be contained
in 17 volumes of more than 1,000 pages each. This enterprise was begun in
1884; more than $40,000 was spent in collecting and editing the material before
the first. volume appeared, and since that time more than $100 000 has been
spent in editorial investigation and publication expenses.



